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Many Children Flock To Playgrounds In Saint John

FIRST PRACTICAL STEP TAKEN
BY PROMOTERS HERE IN 1906

| Five

(Continued From Page Nine.) !
verted into a recreation field for the |
whole - city. Years passed and no|
actlon was taken. It was asserted that|

the area could not be drained. The|

writer took an American engineer over
it iIn the early spring, when it was,
looking its worst, and was assured the|
draining could be done. This view was
later confirmed by the late William|
Murdoch and two engineers engaged by

Walter C. Allison. The new Play-
grounds Association took the matter
up with the City Council, following the
pleas that had been made by Miss
Peters and her committee, and was
successful in having a grant of $2,000
made for preliminary work, and the
sanction of the City Council and Horti-
clltural Association for the turning of
the first sod by the Governor General.
The writer then. suggested and still
maintains that a playgrounds architect
should be engaged to lay out this field,
so that it may be developed into one
of the finest recreation fields in Amer-
Jica.

" In that first year the Association ap-
pealed to the Provincial Board of Edu-
cation to provide a department for
playground teachers, but no such ac-
tion has yet been taken. The use of
school buildings for social centre work
was urged, and the effort was success-
ful to the extent of getting the use of
some assembly rooms—a policy which
had hitherto been stoutly opposed. A
feature of the winter of 1912-13 was|

ing_Rev. A. B. Cohoe and the writer
were wont to discuss the problem of
intemperance. They were in an upper
chamber, and the problem was stagger-
ing along the street below. The need
of closer contaet was realized, and in
the following winter there was opened
in the school room of Brussels street
church, of which Mr. Cohoe was pas-
tor, an open club for men. Being in a |
church building it did! not attract
enough men. Boys crowded eagerly in
but there was no provision for their
proper care. The experiment was sug-
gestive, but the results did not warrant
a continuance, On January 9, 1907
however, the Every Day Club was
orened in a vacant mission hall in
Waterloo street. It had been .organiz-
ed by the writer who found many citi-
zens willing to give all needed finan-
cial assistance and personal encourage-
roent.  The first executive was com-
posed of A. M. Belding, chairman; C.
F. Ledford, secretary; W. Frank
Hatheway, S, P. McCavour, J. N. Har-
vey, W. S. Fisher, and R. T. Hayes.
Other substantial supporters were T.
H. Estabrooks, Joseph Allison, Walter
C. Allison, James F. Robertson, Robert |
Thomson, . E. A. Goodwin, W. H.
Thorne, Thomas McAvity, Baird &‘
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Peters and many mercantile houses

and individuals. ‘It is interesting to!

“}lx)te the names of the entertainers on
the opening night, when more thad
three hundred men crowded into the
hall. They were: G. S. Mayes, L.

Give Playgrounds To City

W. Appleby (now of New York) D.
Arnold Fox, Morton L. Harrison, W.
G. Stokes, J. B. M. Baxter, A. E. Mc-
Ginley, the Exmouth Street Male .

the use of the assembly hall of the Quartette; and another composed of
High School for two months for thethe Messrs. Hoyt, Donald and Smith.
training of playground teachers, by the! The writer outlined the purpose of the

late Miss Bertha J. Miurray of Am-
herst, whose death, after her mar-
riage, was sincerely mourned by the
friends she made in St. John. Miss
Murray also had afternoon classes for
children and high school- girls, and|
evening classes for working girls, and
gave a valuable demonstration of the|
value of supervised play and the wider
use which might, be made of school

buildings.

THE SECOND YEAR SAW
A GREAT EXPANSION.

The year 1918 saw the number of
supervised playgrounds increased from
three to six. We may quote a para-
graph from Miss Peters’ report as
president:—

“Four thousand dollars were ex-
pended for playgrounds,in thé twelve
months; all sections of the city have|
playgrounds, and two are ‘equipped{
with permanent apparatus; the city
has a playground commissioner, otr
association has received recognition
from the Commissioner of Dominion|
Parks, Roclawood athletic grounds are|
undér development, and a park play-|
ground on Fort Howe is contemplated.

~#f the same progress and development
continue for the next few years, what
may we predict? No child in our city|
will be without a place to play; sll|
children will be supplied with ,neigh- |
borhood playgrounds, open not only in|
vacation but all the year round, after
school hours and on holidays, all under
sympathetic supervision. And wher-
ever there be a playground there, too,
will be a social centre for child and
adult, with all that a social centre im-
plies—the public bath, recreation.
music, dancing, social life, always witb
a trained sdpervisor.” :

How far short we have fallen of the
fulfilment of this vision of a great
leader, whose labors ended all too
soon; for in December, 1918, Miss
Peters withdrew from the work, and
at the annual meeting was elected hon- |
orary president, an honor she cherished
but did not long enjoy, since her
death occurred in the following Sep-
tember. W. B. Tennant succeeded her
as president, to be followed in turn
by Mrs. M. B. Good, A. M. Belding
and W. K. Haley.

The year 1918 was marked by the
{raining of playground teachers, the be-
ginning of the drainage of the Rock-
wood recreation field, and a forward
movement in the direction of having
Fort Howe converted into a public
park.

This last originated with the Play-
grounds Association, and was referred |
to a joint committee, after correspond-
ence by the president with Commis-
sioner Harkin of the Dominion Parks.

During the discussion it was noted
that Hon. Dr. Pugsley, when minister
of public works, had sent an engineer
to survey Fort Howe, and the latter
had reported that it could be converted
into a beautiful park. M. E. Agar re-

|

to make the suggestion, as he had ad-
vocated the conversion of the area into
a park before any move was made
Following the action taken by, the As-
sociation a joint committee of the
Canadian Clibs, The Local Council of
Women, the Historical and Natural
History 8ocieties and Daughters of the
Fmpire planned a great meeting in
Mechanics Institute. Archdeacon Ray-
mond, Rev. H. A. Cody and the writer
read historical papers on that occasion,
when Mrs. E. Atherton Smith, who

was a powerful advocate of the pro- .

posed park, occupied the chair. The}

| supper.

club and congratulatory remarks were
made by A. Q. Skinner, F. S. Bonnell
and W. J. Parks.

‘While leading citizens were the spon-
sors of the club, it was promptly hand-
ed over to the men who became the
wembers, although the chairman was
re-elected; each year of its existence,
thus preserving the contact with the
{irst executive and the originators.

At this time there was no large play-
ground" in St. John except the old
Shamrock grounds. Baseball had fal-
len into disrepute through the usual
cause. The old .athletic field beyond
the Marsh Bridge was in very poor| i
condition, the fences down, the grand .
stand fallen in, and the pavilion in|
sad disrepair. The Every Day Club|
with the assistance of several leading |
citizens, leased this ground from W.
S. Barker. Early in the spring of 190y
the club/'moved bodily tc the ground
and, set to work every evening after
The fence was repaired and
the grandstand,’ the field and running
track put in first class condition, the
pavilion repaired, a children’s play-
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ground with swings, teeters, sand;piles

and other equipment made beside it,
and in the summer holidays teachers
engaged to supervise. In the years the
club controlled these grounds amateur
buseball was revived, and amateur ath-|
Jetic sports. George A. Stubbs, E. W.
Sterling, A. W. Covey (who was al-
ways an active member of the Every
Day ' Club), Fred Bovaird, A. W.

Mrs. R, A. Corbett, Mrs. J. 8. Flag-
lor, Mrs,,H. Lawrence and Mrs. W.
E. MclIntyre.

Larger and better quarters for the
| Girls’ Club, which then met in Union
| street, were secured in Princess street.
| Thus during the winter season both
| Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs were condct-
Thorne, Frank Garnett and other local | o4 by the Association, which was great-
athletes figured in the sports, andi|y sfrengthened by the accession to its
men wearing the Every Day Club| cxecutive of the Iadies named. At ‘this
colors were to be seen at meets in|time Caleb D. Howard was general
cther provinces, Mr. Sterling going as | djrector.
far as Winnipeg. Always this P‘“.V'I The Association carried on the work
ground was open to the children. | of the Girls’ Club and Travellers’ Aid

When the leuse of the grounds ex-| for geveral years, but the interest be-
pired Mr. Barker gave the’writer an | gan to flag, and it was with a sense of
option .to buy at a ridiculously low{relief that it was eventually turned
price, but too high for the Every Day | over to the newly wrganized Y. W. C.
Club. An effort was made to induce| A which had long been promoted by
the city to purchase aud make it 8 Mrs John McAvity and others; and
perpetual playground, but the City | which was so much better fitted to
Council of that day declined te spend | make the work successful on the en-
the money. Joséph A. Likely pur-|)srged scale that has since been made
chased it, and it probably could nat be | posgible by the devoted efforts of earn-
bought today for three or four times ogt women, assisted by men of influence |
the sum for which it was offered to“who realized as time went on T®e real |
the Every Day Club. | value of the service rendered to the |

When the club was forced to vacate, | community. The Playgrounds Associa-
the chairman appealed to the owner|tion filled a gap when that service was
of another nearby property that was| essential to gxe continuity of the work.
then and still is vacant, asking permis- |'A]] the efforts put forth since 1900 had
sion to move the apparatus of the|a cumulative force, which has devel-
children’s playground to that site. He |oped more than one lasting institution, |
was told in reply that people should:and revolutionized public sentiment in
look after their own children. How-| relation to recreation for children and
ever, the School Board was more con- | gocial welfare work in general.

siderate, and permitted the club to
remove the apparatus to the Aberdeen ‘\ ?&ggggmmé%—r ?.EAT(.}}%JEES.

school grounds, where it was handed |
over in 1912 to the Playgrounds As-| About five years ago, the Principal
sociation, and for a year or two club| of Rothesay College and A. C. Skel-

members gave voluntary superyision’| ton each sent a letter to the press, cen-

| ground.
| South End Improvement [L.eagug

suring the city because the High
School boys had no place to praetics
athletic sports, and so could not make
a fair showing in the competition each
year on the college fleld.

Rev. H. A. Cody telephoned to the
writer, expressing his sympathy with
the appeal made, but adding that the
boys of the south end of the city were
playing baseball in the streets, break-
ing an occasional window, and devel-
oping a contempt for the law and the
police.  Being réquested to put the
case in the form of a letter, Mr. Cody
did so, and it was published. As the
result of a conference in the Times of-
fice Mr. Cody asked all the other
clergymen 'in, the south end to an-
nounce a meeting in the King Edward
School assembly hall to discuss the
question of playgrounds, and the writ-
er undertook to ask for the usé of
the school building and also announce
the date of the meeting. Chairman R.
B. Emerson of the school board was
in hearty sympathy, and the meeting
was held. In the meantime Mr. Cody
and the writer had discovered in a
civic dump at the east end of St.
James and Britain street the only pos-
sible place to make even a small play-
They so reported, and the
was
organized. A delegation secured Sthe
approval of and some assistance from
the City Council, aud the members
of the League took pick and shove:
and set to work in fhe evenings, as the
old Every Day Club had done. To-
day the South End Improvement Lea-
gue has a fine baseball diamond and
athletic fleld, is conducting a super-
vised playground fer boys in the sum-

mer holidays, and conducts an out-
door skating rink “and splendidly
equipped boys’ club in the winter. The
men who made this possible include
C. M. Lingley, G. N. Hatfield, A. H.
Ellis; J. H. Hamilton, Frank White,
Thamas Killen, J. McCarthy, John M.
Elmore, Isaac Mercer, Frafk Olive,
William Lewis. Capt. Potter, A. J.
Nagle, Alex. Wilson, D. W. Pudding-
ton, Frank Lewis, S. A. Payne, Roy
Cameron, Charles Warren, Welliestne
Frost, William Allen, G. C. Ward,
William Charlton and others.

Thern was a very large and_ very
unsight.y dump on what was “called
the -old shipyard, just beyond the
Marsh Bridge. Ashes, wood, old tin
and iron refuse of every esort was
there. But it was capable of improve-
ment. The property was owned by
the Grand Trunk Pacific Company.
Through their representative, K. J.
MacRae, the writer got their consent
for its use as a playground, subject
to its being taken over at any time
for development purposes, which then
seemed a rather remote contingency.
Armed with this authority the writer
got the use for an evening of the tem-
perance hall in Westmorland Road,
just in front of the great dump. He
called up all the clergymen of the
east end and a meeting was announc-
ed. Only a handful of men and wo-
men were present, but more than
forty boys. Among those present
however, were Rev. R. T. McKim,
Rev. A. L. Tedford, Rev. Mr. Dawson
and H. J. Sheehan, and the Fast End
Improvement I.eague was organized.
A delegation went to City Hall, was
very kindly received, and the use of a

city scraper granted to aid in levelling
the dump. Then the east end men
took off their coats. After 4 time the
interest flagged, but a vigorous appeal
in the Times brought more assistance.
Today the East End League has a
very large and splendid playground,
where Maritime Championships have
been held and senior as well as junior
baseball is played. It has a large
grandstand, comfortable dressing-
rooms and other conveniences, and con-
ducts an open air skating rink in win-
ter. It hgs one of the best equipped
children’s playgrounds in the city, now
being used by the Playgrounds As-
sociation as one of Its supervised
grounds for the summer. The most
active of its workers include D, A.
Ramsey, F. L. Barrett, Harry Scott,
Robert Nelson, Roy Handren, John
Conboy, Gilbert Arsenault, Stanley
Crawford, Joseph Arrowsmith, "Her-
bert Moore, Joseph Ferris, Walter
Daley, Gerald Stanton, James Adams,
Harold Scott, J. Arsenault, Albert
Wolfe, F. Pike, Geonge Hadhdren,
Robert Graham, Thomas McFarlane,
Michael Gaynes and a strong ladies
auxiliary.

The next move was made in West
St. John, where Captain A. J. Mul-
cahy, who with Mrs. Mulcahey has
rendered most valuable service as
members of the Playgrounds Associa-
tion, joined with the writer and with
Wiliam Donohoe, Rev. W. H. Samp-
son, the late Rev. W. R. Robinson, R.
H. Parsops, Stanley G. Ollve and oth-
ers in the effort to form a West End
Improvenfent League. After sevaral
meetings 1t was organized, but the
West Side was then absorbed in semi-

professional baseball, which soon col-
lapsed in the usual way, and the Lea-
gue accomplished very - little. The
next spring an effort was made to re-
vive it and some good work was ac-
complished that year. The next spring
the effort was revived, and the League

still exists, with W. E. Scully, M. P. P.,.

as its president. It has been greatly
handicapped for the lack of grounds,
the street car track through Queen Sgq.
preventing development there; but. the
city has now in response to its appeal
purchased and begun the preparation
of what will be an excellent play-
ground. The League has given en-
couragement tn aquatic sports, and
when it gets its ground and takes off
its coat in real earnest, it may lead
them all. {

The North End did not need any
urging when it saw what other por-
tions of the city were doing. It or-
ganized the North End Improvement
I.eague, went after a site for a play-
ground, prevailed upon the city to
purchase it, being heartily supported
by the Playgrounds Association, and
now has in the making and partially in
use one of the finest recration fields
in the city, where also there will event-
ually be an outdoor skating rink. A
North End Boys’ Club should not be
regarded as an impossibility. The ac-
tive workers in the North End in-
clude Charles F. Stevens, T. A. Arm-
our, R. P. Hamm, George E. Day,
James McLeod, Hon. W. F. Roberts,
F. S. Heans, James S. Gregory, J.
Fraser Gregory, G. T. Hamm, W. H.
Turner, Com. John Thornton, Frank
Finnamore, George Armstrong, Robert
Carson, J. W. Armour, R. W. Scott,

which made it possible to keep that| :

playground open in the evenings. !

Without the use of its grounds the!
Every Day Club had less of an appeal, |
and 1t was eventually changed into a
boys’ club, that was also taken over|
after a time by the Playgrounds As-|
sociation, and is still flourishing. As;
was noted in a recent issue of this|
paper, the club also gave the final
needed impetus to the movement which |
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secured the Children’s Protection Act;|
while the impetus it gave tu amateur |
sport and to community welfare work|
was never lost. There are today mem- |
bers of the Every Day Cllzb in morg‘ London.—“Safe,
than one Improvement ague. and | i1
Community Club in and about the city. m:;,h::cﬁ." commonplace werds dott
PLAYGROUNDS ASSOCIATION | dashe(i int b little tel h
THE 'I'R?VE!LERS 3 o a busy little telegraph
SAVED 1 office at Barry, South Wales, brought

For a number of years, up to No-| a near-tragedy of the southern seas to

(By ARTHUR BRONNER.)

excellent  health,

report for 1914 said that “this import- | vember, 1914, the St. John Girls’ Asso-
ant project seems now in a fair way, ciation carried on a Girls' Club; the
to be successfully carried out.” But| Travellers’ Aid, and a girls’ employ-
we are now told we ought to be satis- | ment bureau. In that year it had a |
fled with a rather cheap substitute. | deficit of $120, and seemed to have

In 1913 the Association had in »ddi- come to the end of its labors. The |
tion to twelve teachcrs a general su- officers were:—Mrs, James Ross, pres-
yrevisor of the six grounds—Miss Ber- | ident; Mrs. J. S. Flaglor, vice-presi-
tic E. Turner. The Carleton, Alexandra | dent; Miss Lillian Deinstadt, secretary;
and Bentley street grounds were cpen-| Mrs, George Dishart, treasurer. The
ed that year. No supervised play- matter was laid before the Playgrounds
grounds, except one for boys on the| Association. At its meeting on Noy.
grounds of the South End Improve-| 12, 1914, Mrs, George L. Wetmore,
ment League, have been added in the| who was then one of the most gctive
last ten years, but great progress has|members of the executive, spoke very
been made in other dircctions. The|strongly in favor 'of taking over the
improvement of Victoria Square was | work. A resolution was adopte®, mov-
begun in 1914. : ied by F. deL. Clements and seconded

It may be addcd that the plans pre-| by R, E. Armstrong, that the Associa-
pared for Fort Howe Park provided, at | tion take over the three_fold work of
the suggestion of the Association, for the Girls’ Association, retain the ser-
an admirably cquipped children’s play-| vices of the three workers: Miss S. A.
ground at the site of the old Magazine Hoyt, Miss A, M. Pitt and Miss Fimma
in Military Road; but that “has ncverl Heffer, and add ten members of the

a happy ending. For they came as a
message from -the dead, closing as|
thrilling a romance of the seas as has|
ever been written in fact or fiction.

This brief message meant that a
sea captain and his 38 mates, mourned
in many a household in Walés and
Cornwall, were safe. For they were!
the words of Captain Cecil Foster,|
whose little 5000-ton ship Trevessa had
gone down in a storm on June 4.

On that day the little Trevessa
floundered in a terrific storm in the
Indian Ocean between Australia and
Africa. This is the loneliest sea in
the world. It is off the beaten track.
The S. O. S. signals that were sent

out didr’t reach any vessel capable of |.

steaming to the scene in a hurry.

been carried out. i
T EVERY DAY CLUB DID

‘OR PLAY AND PLAYGROUNDS.

In old Gurney Division Hall in the

Market Building somewhere about the
year 1906 a group of members, includ-

Girls’ Association to the Playgrounds
Executive. The amalgamation was ef-
fected, and the ladies who joined the
executive, in addition to the four offi-
cers already named, were:—Miss E.
Goodwin, Mrs. H A. McKeown, Mrs.
J. F Bullock. Mrs. C. McN. Steeves,

When the slow ships that plough
those waters did' come they found
nothing—except some shattered pieces
of wood and a smashed ship's boat.

So in Barry they wrote Captain
Cecil Foster off the roster of living
men. The sea had claimed hiwm at

last.
life. |

During the war, he had been in:
two vessels that were torpedoed by |
German submarines. He spent one
night on a tiny raft in a stormy sea.
The other time he was drifting around |
for ten days in an open boat. Not!
long ago he had left England a proud
and happy man—captain of the Tre-]‘
vessa with a crew of 44 offieers and|
men. '

But 22 days after the Trevessa|
sank, the sea gave up not the dead, but|

Hitherto be had led a charmed
|

half-starved men landed at the lonely
Island of Rodriguez, 870 miles north-
cast of the Island of Mauritius. It

Steamer Trevessa lost in a storm in the Indian Ocean, and Captain Cecil
the living. A boat loaded with gaunt, Foster (left) and Chief Officer J. C. Stewart Smith who, with 32 others, were
saved after more than three weeks in open boats, Ten sailors died during the

$,900-mile trip.

/

conntained Captain Foster and 17 of

his men.

For 22 days they had fought rain
and wind and baking sun and moun-
tainous waves. @ They had endured
semi-starvation and raging thirst and
they had come through. Two of their
comrades had died during the 1900-
mile voyage in an open boat. They
had succambed, berause crazed by
thirst, they had drank the salt water
of the sea.

The daily ration of the survivors
had been: one-third of a cigaret tin
of fresh water, one biscuit and two
cigaret tin lids full of condensed milk.
The only thing they could have plenty
of was tobacco.

Three days later there landed on
the same island Chief Officer J. C.
Stewart Smith, with 16 more of the
crew. They were more dead than
alive. For a full day before they
floated into sight of land they were
without food. The last drop of wa-
ter had been drunk. The last biscuit
had been eaten. Eight of their com-
rades had died at sea.

The first thing all of the survivors
did was not to demand water or
food or bed. They wanted to cable.
They wanted to tell their wives and
mothers that they were safe. 'That
done they just wanted to drink and
drink cold water and then sleep and
sleep.

l'omorrow? Why tomorrow thosq
British seamen will be clamoring to
know when they can sign on for a
new job at sea!

George Martin, Charles Cunningham
and George F. Coupe. >

George E. Day deserves particular
mention, because from the very firs
as a member of the School Board, he
stood out for the playgrounds and.the
use of school buildings for social cen=
tre work, and took an active part
-personally in looking after the super~
vised grounds in the North End.

$26,500 IN ONE YEAR
FOR PLAYGROUNDS

About four years ago the Play-
grounds Association felt that sufficient
progress was not being made in the
matter of the Rockwood recreation
field. It had been drained, and was be-
ing used as a dump for suitable ma-
terial to raise the surface to a height
the engineer deemed necessary, but this
seemed an interminable process. The
Association therefore decided to broad-
en out. It asked the Rotary Club, Com-
mercial Club, Board of Trade, Y. M.
<. A, Y. M. C. I, yachting and boat
clubs and every organization interested
in sport to name two of its members
As members of the Asggclation. They
did so, and this thoroughly representa-
tive body made an appeal at City Hall.
The result was a vote in 1920 of $10,-
000 to be spent on the Rockwood
area. In the same year $10,000 was
voted to purchase the site of the new
north end playground. In addition the
Association got its usual grant of
$4,500, and each of the four Improve-
ment Leagues $500. This made $26,500
in all that was voted for playground
purposes in 1920. It made clear two
facts. The first was that the city had |
not done enough along this line in for-

| mer years; and the second was that

the patient work of education had .
aroused the sympathy of the citizens
and made possible this action by the
City Council. ‘

During- the present year the city has
granted $10,000 to purchase a play-
ground for West St. John. If action
weré now taken to ensure that the.
grounds of the South and East End
Improvement Leagues would not pre-
sently be taken from them to be util-
ised for other purposes, jeach of the
four sections of the city would have
an excellent neighborhood playground,
the series culminating in the great civic
recreation field at Rockwood Park.
That was the idea behind the Improye-
ment League movement.

Among those who were active at one

time or another, and some of them
still active as members' of the Play-
grounds Association, and not hitherto
mentioned are:—Mrs. T. H. Bullock,
R. B. Emerson, J. Hunter White, Mrs.
E. Atherton Smith, Mrs. J. H. Doody,
R. J. Walsh, Mrs. H. Colby Smith, E.
L. Rising, Hon. R. J. Ritchle, George
McDonald, Frank L. Peters, W. F.
Nobles, George R. Ewing, Mrs. A. E.
Prince, F. L. Potts, F. G. Sycn_ﬁcr,
Fred Hazel, A. E. Massie, Mrs. C. F.
Woodman, Mrs. L. A. Currey, Rev. W.
H. Barraclough, William Hawker, Rev.
F. .S Porter, Miss Rising, Mrs. Rich-
ard O’Brien, Mrs. N. C. Scott, Miss
Parks, Mrs. F. E. Holman, Mrs. H. D.
Everett, Mrs. J. E. Secord, Mayor G.
Fred Fisher and R. T. Hayes.
" The Playgrounds Exccutive now in-
cludes W. K. Haley, president; A. W.
Covey, lst vice-president; Mrs. A. M.
Belding, 2nd vice-president; L. M.
Farquhar, secretary; Mrs. George
Dishart, treasurer; R. P. Hamm, J. H.
Hamilton, Fred L. Barrett, Stanley
‘Webb, Com. Frink, Capt. Mulcahy, Dr.
Peat, John Kimball, Mrs. M.H.B. Good,
Everett Hunt, Mrs. J. H. Doody, Mrs.
T.. N, Vincent, Mrs. A. C."D. Wilson,
Roy Handren, M. E. Agar, Hon. R. J.
Ritchie, D. A. Ramsay, C. M. Lingley
and some less active members.

AND NOW, WHAT OF THE
PRESENT AND FUTURE?

The first requirement is to erect a
temporary dressing room at Rockwood
Park playgrounds for use at once, to
enable runners to use the new track,
and for the football players in the fall.

The second is to get a playgrounds
architect to plan the whole area: of
21 acres and indicate the site for a,
permanent pavilion with baths sup-
plied from Lily Lake, the work of de-
velopment to go on from year to year
in accordance with the plans. The pres-
ent completed portion should be kept
idle next year to get a covering of turf.
The control of this area whether by a
civic playgrounds director or the
Playgrounds Association, should be de-
termined.

The third requirement is for the
people of each of the four sections of
the city to get behind their Improve-
ment League. The South End leads
with playground, skating rink and
boys’ club. The East End needs a
boys’ club building. The North and
West Ends need to complete their play-
grounds and provide rinks, and each.
ought to have a boys’ club.

What has been accomplished in
twenty years, if the citizens will think
about it, ought to inspire those who
have been ‘indifferent to show a real
interegt and labort to completa the
playground system of St. John.

There is need also from the provin-
cial standpoint of a training school for
playground teachers, whenever the fin-
ancial conditions will permit.

Above all no citizen should stand
aside and .criticize, but should take
hold and help to improve. It is a clvic
duty. .

A Personal Remark.

The writer of this review has been
saying a good deal about himself, a
fact that might possibly lead to'a sus-
picion of egotism. Having, however
arrived at an age when exhibitions o‘
personal vanity come to be regarded
as the crackling of thorns under a pot,
he is willing to let the record stand.
Whatever as a newspaper writer or a
citizen he may have been able to de
to advance any cause could never have
been done but for the prompt, eager
and invaluable co-operation of many
people. Because of that experience he
has an unbounded faith in the essen-
tial goodness of the great majority.
Whoever doubts has only to present a
feasible proposition to advance social
welfare, give himself or herself to the
cause in all sincerity, and be convinced.
When some fall by the wayside, there
are always others to take up the task,
and the work proceeds. No one inii-
dual is essential, else all prog . L
end with the span of that singie ii.c.
To share In a worthy task is a privi-
lege, and is its own reward. If ome
who has been in the work since the
beginning, and knows to whom honor
belongs, may be permitted to make a
suggestion, it is t in some way the
people of St. John should commemor-
ate, in connection with the playground
system, the arduous labors of the wom-
an who had faith to belleve in her fel-
lows, courage to work without ceasing,
and a boundless love for the children.
That woman was the first President of
the Playgrounds Association—the late ,
Migs Mabel Peters. ;




